
 
 
 
 

Minutes 
Tampa Bay Area Complete Count Committee Meeting  

(Statewide and Local members) 
Thursday, July 2, 2009 

2:00 p.m.-3:30 p.m. 
Conference Call: (888) 808-6959 

Conference code: 7517473 
 

2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee Members on the call: 

Maria Pinzon, Hispanic Services Council 

Lourdes Villanueva, Redlands Christian Migrant Association 

Shirley Caban-Tellez, representing Linda Grisham, Adult Migrant Program and Services 

Richard Harrison, representing Linda Grisham, Adult Farmworker Project 

Hillsborough County Local Complete Count Committee contacts on the call: 

Sandra Sroka, Office of Hillsborough County Administrator  

Anthony Morejon, Hillsborough County Hispanic Affairs Liaison 

WŀƴŜǘ IƻƭƭƛƴƎǎƘŜŀŘΣ IƛƭƭǎōƻǊƻǳƎƘ /ƻǳƴǘȅ {ƘŜǊƛŦŦΩǎ hŦŦƛce 

Alan Baker, City of Tampa 

Lillian Soria, City of Plant City 

DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜ {ǘŀŦŦ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŎŀƭƭΥ 

Ayla Anderson, Government Analyst, 2010 Sunshine Census Initiative  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

The meeting began at 2:00 p.m. 

 

Ayla Anderson briefed everyone on the status of the Statewide Complete Count 

Committee and stated that the third Full Committee meeting is going to be held on July 

30. {ƘŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƳŜƴǘƛƻƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ нлмл {ǳƴǎƘƛƴŜ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜΣ 

www.SunshineCensus2010.com, including the Census in Schools page and information 

on how to become a partner with the U.S. Census Bureau. 

Ayla continued with the purpose of the conference call, which is to facilitate 

communication between the local complete count committee in Hillsborough County 

and the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee members located 

in the Tampa Bay Area. 

Maria Pinzon stated that Hillsborough County is very diverse and collaboration between 

the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee and the local 

complete count committee(s) is crucial to the Hillsborough /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎ during the 

2010 Census.  

Alan Baker spoke about his involvement in past censuses. Allen was involved in the 

1980, 1990 and 2000 Censuses. He said in 2000 the Planning Commission in 

Hillsborough County took lead on the public awareness effort.  In regards to Hispanic 

outreach, the local complete count committee worked with local Hispanic radio and 

Hispanic newspapers. He stated that special community events, festivals, free lunches 

and programs geared toward children were held to create census awareness among the 

hard-to-count populations in Hillsborough County. 

Maria Pinzon asked what the timeline was for such promotional events in 2000. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.sunshinecensus2010.com/


 

 

 

Alan responded that the events began in the fall of 1999, but the peak of activities were 

between February and the first week of May. 

Sandra Stroka spoke about the status of IƛƭƭǎōƻǊƻǳƎƘ /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ /ƻƳǇƭŜǘŜ /ƻǳƴǘ 

Committee. As in 2000, the planning commission will be spearheading the 2010 Census 

Hillsborough County Complete Count Committee. The date of their first full committee 

meeting has not been set yet, but on July 15, Commissioner Rose Ferlita will announce 

the Kick-off Census Proclamation.   

Sandra invited the statewide members on the call to become involved with the local 

effort. The statewide members are very interested in working with the local effort. 

Ayla asked the how Hillsborough County can coordinate with the English as a Second 

Language (ESOL) program, to engage the teachers in the 2010 Sunshine Census 

Initiative. At the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee meeting 

on May 14, the education subcommittee said that reaching out to the migrant liaisons 

and ESOL teachers in each district would assist in reaching the hard-to-count 

populations. 

Maria said she would call the supervisor of the ESOL program in Hillsborough County to 

make the initial contact. 

Richard Harrison said he works with child migrant liaisons and will assist in informing 

them of the importance of an accurate count during the 2010 Census and the key role 

they play in the effort. He also stated that Linda Grisham plans on forming a community 

complete count committee to reach the migrant workers in Hillsborough County. 

Ayla added that community complete count committees are an integral part to the 

success of the 2010 Census. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Maria asked if there were any members on the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide 

Complete Count Committee located in Pinellas County. 

Ayla replied no, but the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee 

can work closely with the local complete count committee in Pinellas County and other 

counties in the Tampa Bay Area that are not directly represented on the Statewide 

Complete Count Committee. 

Sandra asked when informational and promotional materials would be available for 

distribution. 

Ayla answered that the U.S. Census Bureau has materials available on their Web site, 

www.census.govΦ {ƘŜ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩs Office plans to have materials available 

in Fall 2009. 

Anthony Morejon pointed out that local media outlets are not fond of receiving public 

awareness materials from main stream advertising agencies because they feel they have 

not been included in the process. During the 2000 Census, some media outlets chose 

not to partake in census outreach for this reason. 

Maria asked about the Partnership Support Program (PSP) offered by the U.S. Census 

Bureau, formerly known as the In-Kind Program in Census 2000. The program supports 

the outreach efforts of partner organizations in order to better reach hard-to-count 

populations by establishing relationships with 2010 partner organizations. The PSP is not 

a grant program. The Census Bureau has no authority to issue grants. No funds are given 

directly or indirectly to 2010 partner organizations. All purchases are made by Census 

Bureau personnel in compliance with the Federal Acquisition Regulation and the 

Commerce Acquisition Manual and disbursed directly to vendors.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.census.gov/


 

 

 

Ayla said the PSP is a limited program and the U.S. Census Bureau is looking to the 

members on the complete count committees to apply for this program, because of the 

level of involvement these organizations already have in the 2010 Census. 

Maria asked if an outreach event was to be planned by members of the 2010 Sunshine 

Census Statewide Complete Count Committee and the local complete count committee 

in Hillsborough County, could they apply for the PSP program. 

Ayla answered yes. 

Maria pointed out the PSP funds limit requests to $2,999 for product-based requests 
and $2,499 for service-based requests. Examples of products include promotional 
banners, pens, pencils, T-shirts, stress balls, balloons, stickers, chip clips, magnets, water 
bottles, baseball caps, bags, paper weights and hand fans.  Examples of services include 
labor hours to pay for clowns to perform at an event, a translator to translate materials 
from English to Thai, a graphic designer to develop various printed materials for a hard-
to-count community. 
 

Alan asked how the U.S. Census Bureau knows which households should receive 

bilingual questionnaires. 

Lourdes said the zip codes used during the 2000 Census are going to be used again 

during the 2010 Census. She pointed out, however, that the zip codes in need of 

bilingual questionnaires have changed since 2000. To help distribute bilingual 

questionnaires the U.S. Census Bureau is looking to the complete count committees to 

advise them on the appropriate zip codes in need of bilingual questionnaires for the 

2010 Census. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Lourdes stated the need to develop a timeline targeting the migrant workers in Florida. 

¢ƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩ ŀŘǾŜǊǘƛǎƛƴƎ ǇŜŀƪǎ ƛƴ aŀǊŎƘ нлмлΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘƻ ǘƻƻ ƭŀǘŜ ǘƻ ǊŜŀŎƘ ǘƘŜ 

migrant workers. The state and local efforts need to be sooner that March 2010. 

Sandra mentioned that during the outreach for the 2000 Census, community events 

ǿŜǊŜ ƘŜƭŘ ŀǘ ά.Ŝ /ƻǳƴǘŜŘέ ǎƛǘŜǎ (where people go to pick up a form if they feel they 

were missed). At these events there was food, activities for children and census 

questionnaires available for members of the community to fill out. 

Allen said that once the 2010 Census is underway, it would be helpful to track the local 

response rates as they are coming in, so areas with a low response rate can be urged to 

fill-out their census questionnaires. 

The call ended at 3:00 p.m. 

     


